
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
1 


MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 


Cameron Missouri Planning & Zoning Commission 
June 13, 2011 


City Council Chambers, Cameron, Missouri 
 


Item 1: Call to Order 
 
Chairman Michael O’Donnell called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 
 
Commissioners Present: 
Chairman Michael O’Donnell 
Stan Hendrix 
Tom Hamlet 
George Pratt 
Mark Garges 
 
Commissioners Absent: 
Delvin Jackson 
 
Others Present: 
Mark Gaugh 
Julie Becker 
Becky Bennett 
Chris Johnson – Cameron Newspaper 
 
Item 2: Minutes from Previous Meeting 
 
May 9, 2011 
Chairman O’Donnell entertained motion to approve the minutes of the May 9, 2011 meeting, motion 
made by Mr. Hendrix, seconded by Mr. Hamlet.  On voice vote the motion carries as follows: ayes – 5, 
nays – 0, abstentions – 0, absent – 1. 
 
Item 3: Public Participation 


Julie Becker asked the Board if it would be possible to include Public Participation at the end of the 
Planning & Zoning meeting so the public can comment on issues discussed during the meeting.  


The Board stated that they were agreeable with adding Public Participation to the end of the regular 
meeting.  Public Participation will be added at the end of future agendas as well as at the beginning of 
the meeting. 


Item 4: Unfinished Business 


A: Public Hearing: Sign Regulations 


The regulatory language of the new sign ordinance was approved during the previous Planning & Zoning 
meeting; however, the final graphics were not included with the completed ordinance.  Fourteen (14) 
graphics have been received by Tom Keller.  The graphic illustrating the sight triangle will be completed 
soon.  The Public Hearing will be re‐opened to discuss the final approval of the graphics. 







 
2 


Chairman O’Donnell entertained motion to enter Public Hearing, motion made by Mr. Garges, seconded 
by Mr. Hamlet.  On voice vote the motion carries as follows: ayes – 5, nays – 0, abstentions – 0, absent – 
1. 


Mr. Garges asked if the illustration of the sight triangle was what the Board was looking for. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that the illustration included in the packet was not exactly what the Board 
was looking for and Mr. Keller is currently working on another, more professional, drawing. 


Mr. Garges asked that if passed tonight, the Board would still be able to view the final drawing before 
recommending the completed ordinance to City Council. 


Chairman O’Donnell recommended that the packet be completed with all graphics before voting on the 
final product and recommending the completed ordinance to City Council. 


Becky Bennett asked that the final and passed ordinance be published in the newspaper and at City Hall 
so the public would know what they can and cannot do when it comes to sign regulations. 


Mr. Garges agreed with Mrs. Bennett and stated that the illustrations would make the ordinance easier 
to understand. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that he was under the impression that the new ordinance and the graphics 
would also be published on the City’s website. 


Mr. Pratt pointed out that the new Quick Reference Sign Table was also included and helped make the 
ordinance easier to understand. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that the City Attorney had not seen the new revised ordinance.   


Chairman O’Donnell would like to table the Public Hearing until all of the graphics are received.   


Chairman O’Donnell asked Mr. Gaugh to send the revised ordinance to the City Attorney so he can 
review the documents before the Public Hearing is closed and submit any comments he may have. 


Mr. Gaugh will also check with the artist, Tom Keller, about the final graphic. 


Chairman O’Donnell asked if the Board or public had any other questions. 


There were none. 


Chairman O’Donnell entertained motion to continue the Public Hearing in July, motion made by Mr. 
Hendrix, seconded by Mr. Pratt.  On voice vote the motion carries as follows: ayes – 5, nays – 0, 
abstentions – 0, absent – 1. 


B: Commission Vacancies 


Artis Stoebener submitted a letter declining her recent appointment to Planning & Zoning.  Current 
Commissioner Mark Garges term will also expire in June.  A new process for filling vacancies in all 
elected positions is currently being researched by the City. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that he would like to leave the open position on the Planning & Zoning Board 
empty for the short time of a month to see if progress is made on the new policy. 


Mr. Hendrix stated that the current standards for appointment should be followed until a new policy is 
adopted by City Council. 


Mr. Pratt stated that he would like to go ahead a start a 2 week advertisement before the next 
scheduled meeting in July to be pro‐active in the search for finding a replacement.  An application and 
resume should be submitted by all applicants. 







 
3 


Chairman O’Donnell asked Mr. Gaugh to start the advertisement in the newspaper for applicants to fill 
the vacant position: applicants are to include a completed application and resume. 


Chairman O’Donnell asked for the applicants’ information to be included in the July packet so the Board 
can review all applicants and make a recommendation to the City Council. 


Mark Garges term will expire at the conclusion of the June 2011 meeting.   


Chairman O’Donnell stated that there are no term limitations on the Planning & Zoning Board.  If a 
current Commissioner would like to continue to serve on the Board, they are allowed to do so. 


Mr. Hendrix stated that Mr. Garges is an asset to the Board and he would like to see him continue his 
appointment.  


Chairman O’Donnell asked Mr. Garges if he would like to continue serving on the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 


Mr. Garges stated that he would like to continue serving on the Board. 


Mr. Hendrix made a motion to recommend to City Council that Mark Garges be re‐appointed to the 
Planning & Zoning Commission for another term, seconded by Mr. Hamlet.  On voice vote the motion 
carries as follows: ayes – 5, nays – 0, abstentions – 0, absent – 1. 


Chairman O’Donnell asked Mr. Gaugh to include the recommendation on City Council’s agenda for the 
Monday, June 20, 2011 meeting. 


C: Sidewalk Construction Regulation 


The sidewalk construction requirements have been discussed to determine if the timeframes specified 
are reasonable.  Currently, there is not a specific timeline as to the beginning of sidewalk construction or 
a clarification as to who is responsible for the completion.  An uncompleted sidewalk could be a safety 
concern or a deterrent when homeowners are determining property values. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that it is the responsibility of the Board to review and revise the rules, 
ordinances, and regulations to make sure they are all fair to everyone in the community. 


Mr. Garges stated that he does not believe the argument of driveway placement is a valid point because 
items like the water meter are determined before construction begins. 


Mr. Hamlet stated that he can sympathize with the builder.  He questioned if a gravel based sidewalk 
could be a temporary fix. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that Drew Bontrager would have look at the possible safety issues a gravel 
sidewalk could cause. 


Mr. Pratt stated that the time frame for the beginning of sidewalk construction is the real question.  
Also, it needs to be determined if the developer (1st, 2nd, or 3rd developer), lot builder, or homeowner is 
responsible for sidewalk construction. 


Mr. Garges stated that the idea of the gravel sidewalk could be a solution to look in to; however, there is 
concern that an individual could fall down and get hurt.  This could lead to a City lawsuit. 


Mr. Hendrix stated that he was glad Clyde Han took time to put together a list of pros and cons about 
the sidewalk issue; however, he did not feel that Clyde was in sync with the Board’s current concern. 


Mr. Hendrix stated that there is already an ordinance in place addressing sidewalk construction but it 
needs to be clarified. 







 
4 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that the code already states who is responsible for the payment of the 
sidewalk.  If not installed by the developer, the City can install the sidewalk and place a tax on the 
property for payment.  The timeframe for construction is not specific. 


Chairman O’Donnell would like the Board to review the timeframes for sidewalk construction before the 
July meeting and put some ideas together for discussion.   


Chairman O’Donnell would also like to meet with Mr. Gaugh and Mr. Han to discuss the issue and put 
together some ideas for clarifying the code. 


The sidewalk discussion will continue during the July meeting. 


C: Code Enforcement Policies 


There has been a concern that code enforcement is driven on a complaint only basis.  The concern is on 
City Council’s agenda for next Monday, June 20, 2011. 


Mr. Garges stated that fair and proactive enforcement is important. 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that Clyde and his crew do an excellent job using good judgment when 
enforcing codes and ordinances; however, it is better to enforce codes on a proactive basis and not a 
complaint driven basis. 


Chairman O’Donnell would like to wait and see what the Council decides at the Monday meeting before 
making a recommendation. 


Item 5: New Business 


None 


Item 6: Public Participation 


Julie Becker stated that she still has concerns about streaming video on digital signs.  Ms. Becker 
questioned who was liable for accidents that could happen in relation to the streaming video. 


Mr. Hendrix asked Ms. Becker if it would be possible to bring data proof of accidents relating to 
streaming video to the Board so they could have information to base a decision off of.  Mr. Hendrix 
would like to know all of the facts before making a decision. 


Mr. Garges suggested that Ms. Becker speak with Police Chief Cory Sloan to see if any accidents have 
happened in relation to the digital sign. 


Ms. Becker also voiced her concern over the monetary issue on builders and homeowners in relation to 
the sidewalk issue because of the slow economy. 


Mr. Pratt stated that working on ordinances and codes while the economy is slow is important so 
everything is put into place when the economy picks back up. 


Ms. Becker also stated that it is important to use good judgment when enforcing rules. 


Item 7: Miscellaneous 


Chairman O’Donnell stated that many of the rules, regulations, and ordinances that have gone before 
City Council are revisions and not new ordinances.  As time progresses, ordinances become outdated 
and need to be updated to better serve the community. 


Mr. Hendrix stated that he believes the Board is very open‐minded and willing to listen to the public’s 
opinion. 







 
5 


Item 8: Adjourn 
 
Motion made by Mr. Pratt to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Garges.  On voice vote, the motion carried as 
follows: ayes – 5, nays – 0, and absent –1. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:15 pm. 
 
Minutes submitted by: 
 
Chris O’Donnell 
Secretary Recorder 
Cameron, MO 64429 
 
 


Minutes of the June 13, 2011 Cameron Planning and Zoning Commission approved on     , 2011 


 
             
Chairman Michael O’Donnell 
 


 


































































		AwningSign

		BannerSign

		CanopySign

		ElectronicMessageSign

		GroundSign-2

		GroundSign

		IncidentalSign

		MarqueeSign

		MonumentSign

		PortableSign

		ProjectingSign

		RoofSign

		StreetSightSign

		WallSign

		WindowSign






NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
 


Cameron Planning and Zoning Commission 
 


Monday, July 11, 2011 
6:00 p.m. 
City Hall 


 
 
 


AGENDA 
 


1. Call to Order. Michael O’Donnell, presiding 


2. Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting (June 13th) 


3. Public Participation 


4. Unfinished Business 


a. Public Hearing continued, Sign Regulations 


b. Commission Vacancies 


c. Sidewalk Construction Regulation 


d. Code Enforcement Policy 


5. New Business 


6. Public Participation 


7. Miscellaneous 


8. Adjourn 





